Trademarks

Autel[®], MaxiSys[®], MaxiDAS[®], MaxiScan[®], MaxiTPMS[®], MaxiRecorder[®], and MaxiCheck[®] are trademarks of Autel Intelligent Technology Corp., Ltd., registered in China, the United States and other countries. All other marks are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

Copyright Information

No part of this manual may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, or otherwise without the prior written permission of Autel.

Disclaimer of Warranties and Limitation of Liabilities

All information, specifications and illustrations in this manual are based on the latest information available at the time of printing.

Autel reserves the right to make changes at any time without notice. While information of this manual has been carefully checked for accuracy, no guarantee is given for the completeness and correctness of the contents, including but not limited to the product specifications, functions, and illustrations.

Autel will not be liable for any direct, special, incidental, indirect damages or any economic consequential damages (including lost profits).

IMPORTANT

Before operating or maintaining this unit, please read this manual carefully, paying extra attention to the safety warnings and precautions.

For Services and Support:



pro.autel.com www.autel.com 1-855-288-3587/1-855-AUTELUS (North America) 0086-755-86147779 (China) support@autel.com

For details, please refer to the Service Procedures in this manual.

Safety Information

For your own safety and the safety of others, and to prevent damage to the device and vehicles upon which it is used, it is important that the safety instructions presented throughout this manual be read and understood by all persons operating or coming into contact with the device.

There are various procedures, techniques, tools, and parts for servicing vehicles, as well as in the skill of the person doing the work. Because of the vast number of test applications and variations in the products that can be tested with this equipment, we cannot possibly anticipate or provide advice or safety messages to cover every circumstance. It is the automotive technician's responsibility to be knowledgeable of the system being tested. It is crucial to use proper service methods and test procedures. It is essential to perform tests in an appropriate and acceptable manner that does not endanger your safety, the safety of others in the work area, the device being used, or the vehicle being tested.

Before using the device, always refer to and follow the safety messages and applicable test procedures provided by the manufacturer of the vehicle or equipment being tested. Use the device only as described in this manual. Read, understand, and follow all safety messages and instructions in this manual.

Safety Messages

Safety messages are provided to help prevent personal injury and equipment damage. All safety messages are introduced by a signal word indicating the hazard level.

Indicates an imminently hazardous situation which, if not avoided, will result in death or serious injury to the operator or to bystanders.

Indicates a potentially hazardous situation which, if not avoided, could result in death or serious injury to the operator or to bystanders.

Safety Instructions

The safety messages herein cover situations Autel is aware of. Autel cannot know, evaluate or advise you as to all of the possible hazards. You must be certain that any condition or service procedure encountered does not jeopardize your personal safety.

When an engine is operating, keep the service area WELL VENTILATED or attach a building exhaust removal system to the engine exhaust system. Engines produce

carbon monoxide, an odorless, poisonous gas that causes slower reaction time and can lead to serious personal injury or loss of life.

A It is not advised to use headphones at a high volume

Listening at high volumes for long periods of time may result in loss of hearing.

▲ Safety Warnings

- Always perform automotive testing in a safe environment.
- Wear safety eye protection that meets ANSI standards.
- Keep clothing, hair, hands, tools, test equipment, etc. away from all moving or hot engine parts.
- Operate the vehicle in a well-ventilated work area, for exhaust gases are poisonous.
- Put the transmission in PARK (for automatic transmission) or NEUTRAL (for manual transmission) and make sure the parking brake is engaged.
- Put blocks in front of the drive wheels and never leave the vehicle unattended while testing.
- Be extra cautious when working around the ignition coil, distributor cap, ignition wires and spark plugs. These components create hazardous voltages when the engine is running.
- Keep a fire extinguisher suitable for gasoline, chemical, and electrical fires nearby.
- Do not connect or disconnect any test equipment while the ignition is on or the engine is running.
- Keep the test equipment dry, clean, free from oil, water or grease. Use a mild detergent on a clean cloth to clean the outside of the equipment as necessary.
- Do not drive the vehicle and operate the test equipment at the same time. Any distraction may cause an accident.
- Refer to the service manual for the vehicle being serviced and adhere to all diagnostic procedures and precautions. Failure to do so may result in personal injury or damage to the test equipment.
- To avoid damaging the test equipment or generating false data, make sure the vehicle battery is fully charged and the connection to the vehicle DLC is clean and secure.
- Do not place the test equipment on the distributor of the vehicle. Strong electro-magnetic interference can damage the equipment.

CONTENTS

	SAFETY INFORMATION	
	SAFETY INSTRUCTIONS	
1	USING THIS MANUAL	1
	1.1 CONVENTIONS	1
2	GENERAL INTRODUCTION	3
	2.1 MaxiSys Tablet错误!未	定义书签。
	2.2 MAXIFLASH VCMI – VEHICLE COMMUNICATION AND MEASUREMENT INTERFACE.	3
	2.3 Accessories Kit	7
3	GETTING STARTED	10
	3.1 Power Up	10
	3.2 Power Down	13
	3.3 Configure Printing	14
4	DIAGNOSTICS	16
	4.1 ESTABLISH VEHICLE COMMUNICATION AND SELECTION	16
	4.2 DIAGNOSTICS SCREEN LAYOUT	26
	4.3 Auto Scan	33
	4.4 READ AND ERASE CODES	37
	4.5 LIVE DATA	38
	4.6 ACTIVE TEST	44
	4.7 ECU INFORMATION	45
	4.8 SPECIAL FUNCTIONS	46
	4.9 PROGRAMMING AND CODING	47
	4.10 GENERIC OBD II OPERATIONS	51
	4.11 DIAGNOSTIC REPORT	55
	4.12 EXIT DIAGNOSTICS	59
5	REPAIR ASSIST (内容待更新)	60
	5.1 Access the System	60
	5.2 CODE RESULTS DROPDOWN MENU	62
	5.3 REPAIR CASE SCREEN LAYOUT	62
	5.4 TECHNICAL SERVICE BULLETIN (OEM INFORMATION)	64
	5.5 FREQUENCY OF OCCURRENCE	64
	5.6 TROUBLESHOOTING	65
	5.7 REAL FIXES	66
	5.8 RELEVANT REPAIR INFORMATION	67

	5.9 RELEVANT CASES	68
6	SERVICE	69
	6.1 OIL RESET SERVICE	69
	6.2 ELECTRIC PARKING BRAKE (EPB) SERVICE	70
	6.3 TIRE PRESSURE MONITORING SYSTEM (TPMS) SERVICE	70
	6.4 BATTERY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (BMS) SERVICE	71
	6.5 DIESEL PARTICLE FILTER (DPF) SERVICE	71
	6.6 IMMOBILIZER (IMMO) SERVICE	72
	6.7 STEERING ANGLE SENSOR (SAS) SERVICE	73
7	MAXIFIX	74
	7.1 GETTING STARTED	74
	7.2 NAVIGATION	74
	7.3 OPERATIONS	76
8	MEASUREMENT	89
	8.1 OSCILLOSCOPE OPERATION	89
	8.2 MULTIMETER OPERATION	150
	8.3 SIGNAL GENERATOR OPERATION	175
	8.4 OBDII COMMUNICATION LINE INSPECTION OPERATION	202
9	DATA MANAGER	229
	9.1 VEHICLE HISTORY	230
	9.2 Workshop Information	232
	9.3 Customer Manager	233
	9.4 IMAGE	234
	9.5 PDF FILES	235
	9.6 Review Data	235
	9.7 UNINSTALL APPS	236
	9.8 DATA LOGGING	236
10	SETTINGS	237
	10.1 OPERATIONS	237
11	UPDATE	242
12	VCMI MANAGER	244
	12.1 WI-FI CONNECTION	245
	12.2 BT PAIRING	246
	12.3 Update	248
13	ADAS	249

14	SUPPORT		250
	14.1 PRODUCT REGISTRATION		250
	14.2 Support Screen Layout		250
	14.3 MY ACCOUNT		251
	14.4 USER COMPLAINT		252
	14.5 DATA LOGGING		253
	14.6 TRAINING CHANNELS		254
	14.7 FAQ DATABASE		254
15	REMOTE DESKTOP		255
	15.1 OPERATIONS		255
16	QUICK LINK		257
17	MAXIVIEWER		258
18	MAXIVIDEO	昔误!	未定义书签。
	18.1 Additional Accessories	昔误!	未定义书签。
	18.2 OPERATIONS	昔误!	未定义书签。
19	MAXIMALL	旹误!	未定义书签。
	19.1 Operations	告误!	未定义书签。
20	MAINTENANCE AND SERVICE		260
	20.1 MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS		260
	20.2 TROUBLESHOOTING CHECKLIST		260
	20.3 About Battery Usage		261
	20.4 Service Procedures		262
21	COMPLIANCE INFORMATION		265
22	WARRANTY		267
	22. 12-Month Limited Warranty		267

1 Using This Manual

This manual contains device usage instructions.

Some illustrations shown in this manual may contain modules and optional equipment that are not included in your system.

1.1 Conventions

The following conventions are used.

1.1.1 Bold Text

Bold text is used to highlight selectable items such as buttons and menu options.

Example:

• Tap **OK**.

1.1.2 Notes and Important Messages

Notes

A **NOTE** provides helpful information such as additional explanations, tips, and comments.

Example:

NOTE

New batteries reach full capacity after approximately 3 to 5 charging and discharging cycles.

Important

IMPORTANT indicates a situation which that if not avoided may result in damage to the tablet or vehicle.

Example:

IMPORTANT

Keep the cable away from heat, oil, sharp edges and moving parts. Replace damaged cables immediately.

1.1.3 Hyperlink

Hyperlinks or links that take you to other related articles, procedures, and illustrations are available in electronic documents. Blue italic text indicates a selectable hyperlink and blue underlined text indicates a website link or an email address link.

1.1.4 Illustrations

Illustrations used in this manual are samples, and the actual testing screen may vary for each vehicle being tested. Observe the menu titles and on-screen instructions to make correct option selection.

1.1.5 Procedures

An arrow icon indicates a procedure.

Example:

- > To use the camera:
 - 1. Tap the **Camera** button. The camera screen opens.
 - 2. Focus the image to be captured in the view finder.
 - 3. Tap the inner blue circle. The view finder now shows the captured picture and auto-saves the taken photo.
 - 4. Tap the thumbnail image on the top right corner of the screen to view the stored image.
 - 5. Tap the **Back** or **Home** button to exit the camera application.

2 General Introduction

The MaxiSys Ultra is a multi-platform diagnostic solution comprised of a powerful 12.9-inch TFT-LCD touchscreen Android-based tablet, a VCMI communication and diagnostic measurement unit and an on-tool and cloud-based repair instructions and expert advice. As an intelligent diagnostic and information system, MaxiSys Ultra not only displays the relevant repairs gathered from experienced industry experts, but provides step-by-step guidance to ensure the repair is done correctly and efficiently.

There are three main components to the MaxiSys system:

- MaxiSys Tablet the central processor and monitor for the system.
- MaxiFlash VCMI Vehicle Communication and Measurement Interface

This manual describes the construction and operation of these devices and how they work together to deliver diagnostic solutions.

2.2 MaxiFlash VCMI – Vehicle Communication and Measurement Interface

2.2.1 Functional Description



Figure 2-5 VCMI Top View

- 1. Multimeter Jacks
- 2. USB Port
- 3. Hook
- 4. DC Power Supply Input Port
- 5. Power Button



Figure 2-6 VCMI Front View

- 6. Power LED refer to Table 2-4 Power LED Description for details
- 7. Battery LED refer to Table 2-5 Battery LED Description for details
- 8. Signal Generator LED lights green when operating in the signal generator mode
- 9. Multimeter LED lights green when operating in the multimeter mode
- 10. Oscilloscope LED lights green when operating in the oscilloscope mode and flashes green when communicating
- 11. Vehicle LED refer to Table 2-6 Vehicle LED Description for details

IMPORTANT

Do not disconnect the programming device while the vehicle LED status light is on! If the flash programming procedure is interrupted while the vehicle's ECU is blank or only partially programmed, the module may be unrecoverable.



Figure 2-7 VCMI Bottom View

- 12. Ethernet Port
- 13. Vehicle Data Connector (DB26-Pin)
- 14. Input Channel A
- 15. Input Channel B
- 16. Input Channel C
- 17. Input Channel D

LED	Color	Description	
	Yellow	Lights yellow automatically at power up when VCMI is self-testing.	
Power	Green	Lights solid green when powered on.	
	Red	 Lights solid red when system failure occurs. Flashes red when VCMI is upgrading. 	

Table 2-4 Power LED Description

Table 2-5 Battery LED Description

LED	Color	Description		
	Green	 Flashes green when VCMI is charging. Lights solid green when fully charged or the battery level is above 75%. 		
Battery	Yellow	Lights yellow when the battery level is above 25% but below 75%.		
	Red	 Lights red when the battery level is above 10% but below 25%. Flashes red when the battery level is below 10%. 		

Table 2-6 Vehicle LED Description

LED	Color	Description
	Green	Lights solid green when connected via USB cable. Flashes green when communicating.
	Blue	Lights solid blue when connected via BT. Flashes blue when communicating.
Vehicle	Cyan (Blue/Green)	Lights solid cyan when connected via Wi-Fi. Flashes cyan (blue/green) when communicating.
	Magenta (Blue/Red)	Lights solid magenta when connected via Internet cable. Flashes magenta (blue/red) when communicating.

Communication Capability

The Vehicle Communication and Measurement Interface supports Bluetooth (BT), Wi-Fi and USB communications. It can transmit vehicle data to the tablet with or without

a cable connection. In open areas, the working range of the transmitter through BT communication is up to 328 feet (100 m). The working range of 2.4G Wi-Fi communication is up to 328 feet (100 m) while 5G Wi-Fi is up to 164 feet (50 m). If the signal is lost due to being taken out of range, communication will be restored once the tablet is within range.

Measurement Capability

The VCMI device is designed with the functions of multimeter, oscilloscope, signal generator and OBDII communication line inspection. The parameters such as voltage, resistance, current, signal frequency, and voltage-time characteristic of the signal can be measured and the results are displayed on the tablet.

Programming Capability

The VCMI device is a D-PDU, SAE J2534-1 & RP1210 compliant PassThru programming interface device. Using the updated OEM software, it is capable of replacing the existing software/firmware in the Electronic Control Units (ECU), programming new ECUs and fixing software-controlled drivability issues and emission issues.

2.2.2 Power Sources

The VCMI device can receive power from the following sources:

- Vehicle Power
- AC/DC Power Supply
- Built-in rechargeable Battery Pack

Vehicle Power

The VCMI device operates on 12/24 Volt vehicle power, which it receives through the vehicle data connection port. The device powers on whenever it is connected to an OBD II/EOBD compliant data link connector (DLC). For non OBD II/EOBD compliant vehicles, the device can be powered from a cigarette lighter or other suitable power port on the test vehicle using the auxiliary power cable.

AC/DC Power Supply

The VCMI device can be powered from a wall socket using the AC/DC power adapter.

Built-in Battery Pack

The VCMI device can also be powered with its built-in 3750mAh battery pack.

2.2.3 Technical Specifications

Table 2-7 VCMI Specifications

ltem	Description	
Communications	 BT V2.1 + EDR USB 2.0 Wi-Fi 2.4G/5G Ethernet 	
Wireless Frequency	2.4GHz/5GHz	
Power and Battery	 3750 mAh lithium-polymer battery Charging via 12 V DC power supply 	
Operating Temp.	0°C to 50°C	
Storage Temp.	-20°C to 60°C	
Dimensions (L x W x H)	214 mm (8.43") x 192 mm (7.56") x 39 mm (1.54")	
Weight	1.2kg (2.64 lb.)	

⊘ Note

For additional information, please refer to the accompanied user manual for the VCMI device.

2.3 Accessories Kit

2.3.1 Main Cable

The VCMI device can be powered through the Main Cable when connected to an OBD II/EOBD compliant vehicle. The Main Cable connects the VCMI device to the vehicle's data link connector (DLC), through which the VCMI device can transmit vehicle data to the tablet.



Figure 2-9 Main Cable – 1.5 m in length

2.3.2 OBD I-Type Adapters

The OBD I-type adapters are for Non-OBDII vehicles. The adapter used depends on the type of vehicle being tested. The most common adapters are shown below (Adapters may be sold separately, please contact your distributor for details).









Benz-14

Chrysler-16

BMW-20

Nissan-14



Mitsubishi/Hyun dai-12+16





PSA-2

Mazda-17



VW/Audi-2+2

Benz-38

2.3.3 Other Accessories



Docking Station Provides power to the tablet.



Standard 2.0 USB Cable Connects the tablet to the VCMI unit.



AC/DC External Power Adapter

Connects the tablet to the external DC power port for power supply.



Cigarette Lighter

Provides power to the tablet or the VCMI device through connection to the vehicle's cigarette lighter receptacle, as some non-OBD II vehicles cannot provide power via the DLC connection.



Clipper Cable

Provides power to the tablet or the VCMI device through connection to the vehicle's battery.



Lighter Fuse x2

A safety device for the cigarette lighter.

3 Getting Started

Make sure the tablet has sufficient power or is connected to the external power supply (see *Power Sources* on page 5).

3.1 Power Up

Press and hold (long press) the Lock/Power button on the top right side of the tablet to switch the unit on. The system boots up and displays the MaxiSys Job Menu.



Figure 3-1 Sample MaxiSys Job Menu

- 1. Application Buttons
- 2. Locator and Navigation Buttons
- 3. Status Icons

It is recommended to lock the screen when not in use to protect information in the system and conserve the power.

Almost all operations on the tablet are controlled through the touchscreen. The touchscreen navigation is menu driven allowing for quick access you to test procedure, or data that you need, through a series of questions and options. Detailed descriptions of the menu structures are found in the chapters for each application.

3.1.1 Application Buttons

The table below briefly describes each of the applications in the MaxiSys system.

Name	Button	Description
Diagnostics		Accesses the unit's diagnostics functions. See <i>Diagnostics</i> on page 20.
Service	Fr	Accesses special functions menu. See Service on page 74.
MaxiFix Provides an extensive resource of techniques and diagnostic information MaxiFix on page 88.		
MeasurementImage: Software tools that measure vehicle parameters such as voltage, resistance and monitor signal activities. See Mea on page 103.		
Data Manager		Accesses the saved repair shop, customer and vehicle data including detail vehicle diagnostics and test record history. See Data Manager on page 246.
Settings Accesses the system settings menu and graduate tablet menu. See Settings on page 255.		
Update Acce		Accesses system software update menu. See <i>Update</i> on page 260.
VCMI Manager Accesses VCMI connection menu. See Manager Manager on page 262. Manager Manager		Accesses VCMI connection menu. See VCMI Manager on page 262.
ADAS	ADAS	Accesses ADAS systems menu. See <i>ADAS</i> on page 267.
Support		Synchronizes Autel's online service database with the MaxiSys tablet. See <i>Support</i> on page 268.
Remote Desktop		Configures your unit to receive remote support using the TeamViewer application. See Remote Desktop on page 273.
Quick Link		Provides associated website bookmarks to allow quick access to product update, service, support

Table	3-1	Applica	ations
Table	J ⁻ I	Applice	auons

Name	Button	Description
		and other information. See <i>Quick Link</i> on page 275.
MaxiViewer		Provides a quick search for supported functions and/or vehicles. See MaxiViewer on page 276.
MaxiVideo	Ĩ	Configures the unit to operate as a video scope device by connecting to an Imager head cable for close vehicle inspections. See <i>MaxiVideo</i> on page 278.
MaxiMall	MALL	Purchase the software update subscriptions directly from tablet. See <i>MaxiMall</i> on page 285.

3.1.2 Locator and Navigation Buttons

Operations of the Navigation buttons at the bottom of the screen are described in the table below:

Name	Button	Description
Locator	0 0 0 0	Indicates the location of the screen. Swipe the screen left or right to view the previous or next screen.
Back		Returns to the previous screen.
Android Home		Returns to Android System's Home screen.
Recent Apps		Displays a list of applications that are currently running. Tap an app icon to launch. Remove an app by swiping it to the right. Long press (press and hold) the icon to display side-by-side windows that enable you to perform operations simultaneously when applications are opened. Long press again to exit the multi-window display. Note: Not all the applications support the multi-window display function.
Browser	9	Launches the Chrome Internet browser.

Table 3-2 Locator and Navigation Buttons

Name	Button	Description
Camera	0	Tap icon to open camera viewfinder. Press and hold icon to capture screenshot of display screen. The saved files are auto-stored in the Data Manager application for later review. See Data Manager on page 246.
Display & Sound	*	Adjusts the brightness of the screen and the volume of the audio output.
MaxiSys Home	M	Returns to MaxiSys Job Menu.
VCMI	VCM _*	Opens the VCMI Manager application. A green icon at the bottom right corner indicates the VCMI device is connected, a red X icon will display if connection fails. The battery status icon displays the remaining VCMI power.
MaxiSys Shortcut		Returns to the Diagnostics screen.
Service		Returns to the Service screen.

> To use the camera:

- 1. Tap the **Camera** button. The camera screen opens.
- 2. Focus the image to be captured in the view finder.
- 3. Tap the inner blue circle. The view finder now shows the captured picture and auto-saves the taken photo.
- 4. Tap the thumbnail image on the top right corner of the screen to view the stored image.
- 5. Tap the **Back** or **Home** button to exit the camera application.

Refer to Android documentation for additional information.

3.1.3 System Status Icons

Your MaxiSys tablet is a fully functional Android tablet with the standard Android operation system status icons. Refer to Android documentation for additional information.

3.2 Power Down

All vehicle communications should be terminated before shutting down the tablet. A warning message displays if a shutdown is attempted while the tablet is communicating with the vehicle. Forcing a shut down while the tablet is communicating with the vehicle

may lead to ECM problems on some vehicles. Please exit the Diagnostics application before shutting off the tablet.

> To power down the MaxiSys tablet:

- 1. Long press (press and hold) the Lock/Power Button.
- 2. Tap **Power off** option.
- 3. Tap **OK**.

3.2.1 Reboot System

In case of system crash, long press the Lock/Power button and tap **Restart** to reboot the system.

3.3 Configure Printing

To print from the MaxiSys tablet, printer software needs to be installed on a Windows-based computer that is connected to a printer.

- > To install the MaxiSys Printer driver program:
- 1. Download the **Maxi PC Suite** from <u>www.autel.com</u> > Support & Updates > *Firmware* & *Downloads* > Update Client, and install to your windows-based computer.
- 2. Follow the pop-up instructions to install the Maxi PC Suit to your PC.
- 3. After the Maxi PC Suite installation, the printer driver program, **PC Link**, will be automatically installed on your PC.
- 4. Click on **Finish** to complete the installation procedure.

3.3.1 Printing Operation

This section describes how to receive files from the tablet through the windows PC to the connected printer.

> To perform printing through the computer

- 1. Before printing, ensure the tablet is connected either via Wi-Fi or LAN, See Printing Setting on page 256 for more information.
- 2. Launch the PC Link application on the computer to open up the printer dialog windows.
- 3. Click **Test Print** to make sure the printer is working successfully.

- Tap the **Print** button on the toolbar displayed in various applications of the MaxiSys system. A temporary file will be created and sent to the computer for printing.
- 5. Ensure the Auto Print function to automatically print the files received from the tablet.

To print the document later, click the **Open PDF file** and select the document, and double click the **Print** on the MaxiSys Printer interface to start printing.

Ensure the computer with the PC Link software installed is connected to a printer.

4 Diagnostics

The Diagnostics application can access the electronic control module of multiple vehicle control systems, including but not limited to the engine, transmission, antilock brake system (ABS) and airbag system (SRS).

4.1 Establish Vehicle Communication and Selection

4.1.1 Establish Vehicle Communication

The Diagnostics operations require connecting the MaxiSys Ultra Diagnostic tablet to the test vehicle through the VCMI device using the Main Cable. (Use the applicable OBD I-type adapter if needed). To establish proper vehicle communication to the tablet, you need to perform the following steps:

- 1. Connect the VCMI device to the vehicle's DLC for both communication and power source.
- 2. Connect the VCMI device to the tablet via BT pairing, Wi-Fi or USB connection.
- When the above steps are completed, check the VCMI navigation button at the bottom bar on the screen, if a green BT, Wi-Fi or USB icon displays at the lower right corner, the MaxiSys Ultra Diagnostic Platform is ready to start vehicle diagnosis.

4.1.1.1 Vehicle Connection

The method used to connect the VCMI device to a vehicle's DLC depends on the vehicle's configuration as follows:

- A vehicle equipped with an On-board Diagnostics Two (OBD II) management system supplies both communication and 12-volt power through a standardized J-1962 DLC.
- A vehicle not equipped with an OBD II management system supplies communication through a DLC connection, and in some cases supplies 12-volt power through the cigarette lighter receptacle or a connection to the vehicle battery.

OBD II Vehicle Connection

This type of connection only requires the main cable without any additional adapter.

> To connect to an OBD II vehicle

1. Connect the main cable's female adapter to the Vehicle Data Connector on the

VCMI device, and tighten the captive screws.

2. Connect the cable's 16-pin male adapter to the vehicle's DLC, which is generally located under the vehicle dash.

The vehicle's DLC is not always located under the dash; refer to the user manual of the test vehicle for additional connection information.

Non-OBD II Vehicle Connection

This type of connection requires both the main cable and a required OBD I adapter for the specific vehicle being serviced.

There are three possible conditions for Non-OBD II vehicle connection:

- DLC connection supplies both communication and power.
- DLC connection supplies communication and power is to be supplied via the cigarette lighter connection.
- DLC connection supplies communication and power is to be supplied via connection to the vehicle battery.
- > To connect to a Non-OBD II Vehicle
 - 1. Connect the main cable's female adapter to the Vehicle Data Connector on the VCMI device, and tighten the captive screws.
 - 2. Locate the required OBD I adapter and connect its 9-pin jack to the main cable's male adapter.
 - 3. Connect the attached OBD I adapter to the vehicle's DLC.

Some vehicles may have more than one adapter or may have test leads instead of an adapter. Make the proper connection to the vehicle's DLC as required.

> To connect the cigarette lighter

- 1. Plug the DC power connector of the cigarette lighter into the DC power supply input port on the device.
- 2. Connect the male connector of the cigarette lighter into the vehicle's cigarette lighter receptacle.

> To connect the clipper cable

1. Connect the tubular plug of the clipper cable to the male connector of the cigarette lighter.



Figure 4-1 Connection between Cigarette Lighter and Clipper Cable

- 2. Plug the DC power connector of the cigarette lighter into the DC power supply input port of the VCMI device.
- 3. Connect the clipper cable to the vehicle's battery.

NOTE

After the VCMI device is successfully connected to the vehicle, the Power LED on the device lights, and a beep sound will be heard.

4.1.1.2 VCMI Connection

After the VCMI device is properly connected to the vehicle, the Power LED on the VCMI device lights solid green, and is ready to establish communication with the tablet.

Coming with the MaxiSys Ultra tool kit, the VCMI device supports three communication methods with the tablet: BT, Wi-Fi and USB.

Pairing Up via BT

In open areas, the working range for BT communication is about 328 feet (100 m), giving technicians greater mobility to perform vehicle diagnosis from anywhere in the repair shop.

To expedite multi-vehicle diagnostics, more than one VCMI can be used in busy repair shops enabling technicians to quickly pair via BT their Ultra to each VCIM separately and therefore eliminating the need to unplug the VCMI from one vehicle and then connect it to another each time.

> To pair the tablet with the VCMI device via BT

- 1. Power up the tablet.
- 2. Select the VCMI Manager application from the MaxiSys Job Menu.
- 3. When the **VCMI Manager** application is opened, the device automatically scans for available VCMI devices for BT pairing. The found devices are listed in the Setting section on the right side of the screen.

If no VCMI device is found, this may indicate that the signal strength is too weak to be detected. Reposition the VCMI device, and remove all possible objects that may cause signal interference. Tap the **Scan** button at the top right corner to rescan for VCMI.

- 4. Typically, the VCMI device name displays as Maxi suffixed with a serial number. Select the VCMI device for pairing. (If more than one VCMI is used in the shop, ensure the correct VCMI is selected to pair.)
- 5. When pairing is successful, the connection status displays as Connected.
- 6. The VCMI icon on the tablet Navigation bar at the bottom of the screen displays a green circle BT icon when the tablet and the VCIM are connected.

Refer to *BT Pairing* on page 264 for additional information.

Wi-Fi Connection

The VCMI device supports both 2.4GHz and 5GHz Wi-Fi connection. Please choose 2.4GHz or 5GHz Wi-Fi connection according to specific situations. In open areas, the working range of 2.4G Wi-Fi communication is up to 328 feet (100 m) while 5G Wi-Fi is up to 164 feet (50 m).

> To pair the tablet with the VCMI device via Wi-Fi

- 1. Power up the tablet.
- 2. Select the VCMI Manager application from the MaxiSys Job Menu.
- 3. When the **VCMI Manager** application is opened, the tablet automatically scans for available VCMI devices for Wi-Fi connection. Found VCMI devices are listed in the Setting section on the right side of the screen.
- 4. Typically, the VCMI device name displays as Maxi suffixed with a serial number. Select the required device for connection.
- 5. When pairing is successful, the connection status is shown as Connected.
- 6. The VCMI icon on the tablet Navigation bar at the bottom of the screen displays a green circle Wi-Fi icon when the tablet and the VCIM are connected.

Refer to *Wi-Fi Connection* on page 263 for additional information.

USB Cable Connection

The USB cable connection is a simple and quick way to establish communication between the tablet and the VCMI device. After properly connecting the USB cable from the tablet to the VCMI device, the VCMI navigation button at the bottom bar of the screen displays a green check mark, and the USB LED on the VCMI device lights solid green, indicating the connection between the devices is successful.

The MaxiSys diagnostic platform is now ready to perform vehicle diagnosis.

Since the USB connection provides the most stable and fastest communication and is the recommended communication method between the tablet and VCMI when operating ECU programming or coding. The USB communication method will take priority over other connected communication methods.

4.1.1.3 No Communication Message

- A. If the tablet is unable to connect to the VCMI, an "Error" message displays. An "Error" message indicates the tablet is not communicating with the VCMI device. Troubleshoot the error by performing the following steps:
 - Ensure the VCMI device is powered on.
 - When using the wireless connection, ensure the network is configured correctly and the proper device has been connected.
 - If the tablet loses communication abruptly during the diagnosis, ensure no objects are causing signal interruption.
 - Ensure the VCMI device is properly positioned with the VCMI front side up.
 - Move the tablet closer to the VCMI device. If using the wired connection, ensure the cable is securely attached to the VCMI.
 - Ensure the VCMI communication mode is lit for the selected communication type: BT, Wi-Fi or USB.
- B. If the VCMI device is unable to establish a communication link, a message will display troubleshooting instructions. Possible causes for the communication error include:
 - The VCMI device is unable to establish a communication link with the vehicle.
 - A vehicle system has been selected for diagnoses that is not supported by the vehicle.
 - There is a loose connection.
 - There is a blown vehicle fuse.
 - The vehicle or the data cable has a wiring fault.
 - There is a circuit fault in the data cable or adapter.
 - The vehicle identification is incorrectly entered.

4.1.2 Getting Started

Prior to first use of the Diagnostics application, ensure the VCMI device is properly connected to and is communicating with the tablet. See *VCMI Manager* on page 262.

4.1.2.1 Vehicle Menu Layout

When the VCMI device is properly connected to the vehicle, and paired to the tablet, the platform is ready to start vehicle diagnosis. Tap on the Diagnostics application button on the MaxiSys Job Menu, the Vehicle Menu displays on the screen.

EOBD	CHRYSLER	DODGE	JEEP	GM Brazil
EOBD	Chrysler	DODGE	JEEP	GM Brazil
	TEST	FORD	VOLKSWAGEN	ASTON
GM	Test	Ford		Aston Martin
BENZ Hercedes-Benz	Mercedes-Benz LD	Maybach	Smart	Iveco LD
	GM MERCEDED BENZ ercedes-Benz	GM Test MERCEOPP BENZ ercedes-Benz LD Mercedes-Benz LD	GM Test Ford Ford MERCEORE BENZ LO Mercedes-Benz LD Maybach Maybach	GM Test Ford Volkswagen Brazil MERCERDER BENZ ercedes-Benz LD Maybach Smart Maybach Smart

Figure 4-2 Sample Vehicle Menu Screen

- 1. Top Toolbar Buttons
- 2. Manufacturer Buttons

Top toolbar Buttons

The operations of the Toolbar buttons at the top of the screen are listed and described in the table below:

Name	Button	Description				
Home		Returns to the MaxiSys Job Menu.				
VID Scan		Tap this button to open a dropdown list; tap Auto Detect for auto VIN detection; tap Manual Input to enter VIN code or license number manually. Tap Scan VID to scan the license number / VIN code by camera.				
All	All	Displays all the vehicle makes in the vehicle menu.				
Favorites	Favorites	Displays user-selected favorite vehicle makes.				
History	History	Displays the stored test vehicle history records. This option provides direct access to the previously tested vehicle recorded during previous tests. See <i>Vehicle History</i> on page 247.				
America	America	Displays the American vehicle menu.				

Name	Button	Description
Europe	Europe	Displays the European vehicle menu.
Asia	Asia	Displays the Asian vehicle menu.
China	China	Displays the Chinese vehicle menu.
Search	QSearch	Tap inside the search field to display the virtual keyboard and input the vehicle manufacturer to test.
Cancel	Cancel	Tap this button to exit the search screen or cancel an operation.

Manufacturer Buttons

The Manufacturer buttons display the various vehicle brand names. Select the manufacturer button after the VCMI device is properly connected to the test vehicle to start a diagnostic session.

4.1.3 Vehicle Identification

The MaxiSys diagnostic system supports five methods of Vehicle Identification.

- 1. Auto VIN Scan
- 2. Manual Input
- 3. Scan License / VIN
- 4. Manual Vehicle Selection
- 5. OBDII Direct Entry

4.1.3.1 Auto VIN Scan

The MaxiSys diagnostic system features the latest VIN-based Auto VIN Scan function to identify CAN vehicles in just one tap, enabling the technician to quickly identify the exact vehicle and scan its available systems for fault codes.

> To perform Auto VIN Scan

- 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button from the MaxiSys Job Menu. The Vehicle Menu displays.
- 2. Tap the VID Scan button on the top toolbar.
- Select Auto detect. The tablet starts VIN scanning on the vehicle's ECU. Once the test vehicle is successfully identified, the system will guide you to the Vehicle Diagnostics screen.



Figure 4-3 Sample Auto Detect Screen

Depending on the vehicle, the Auto VIN function is still available after a vehicle brand is selected.

11.99 olkswapen > Automatic selec	tion	وتوجين	NA		🦈 L		VCM6 [=== 12.19
Automatic selection				Acquire VIN info	rmation		
Manual selection	Input VIN o	or tap 'Read'	to acquire	VIN			Read
System selection	·						
(
IN: ifo:						01	500
						UK	ESC
• ô	$\overline{\mathbf{a}}$	0	*[]	M VCM		-	🕕 💎 100% 🔒 1:0

Figure 4-4 Sample Vehicle Selection Screen

Select **Automatic Selection** and the system will acquire VIN information automatically or allow users to input the VIN manually.

4.1.3.2 Manual Input

For vehicles that do not support the Auto VIN Scan function, the MaxiSys diagnostic system allows you to enter the vehicle VIN manually, or simply take a photo of the VIN sticker for quick vehicle identification.

> To perform Manual Input

- 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button from the MaxiSys Job Menu. The Vehicle Menu displays.
- 2. Tap the VID Scan button on the top toolbar.
- 3. Select Manual input.
- 4. Tap the input box and enter the correct VIN code or license numbers.



Figure 4-5 Sample Manual VIN Input

- 5. Tap **OK**. The vehicle will be identified and matched to the vehicle database and the Vehicle Diagnostics screen will display.
- 6. Tap **Cancel** to exit Manual Input.

4.1.3.3 Scan License / VIN

Tap **Scan License / VIN** in the dropdown list (Figure 4-3), the camera will be opened. Position the tablet to align the license number or VIN Code within the scanning window, and the license number or VIN code will be scanned and identified automatically, tap "**OK**".

	1	A	ō
	Recognition result		
The current VIR identification method, the	LSVAA49J132047371) Vresbonized	E
	Retake Ok		
♠ ⋒ ७		à 641	₽ ♥ 100 € 3 3 3 4

Figure 4-6 Sample Scan License / VIN Code 1

The vehicle information will be displayed on the tablet. If previous diagnostic records are present for the vehicle, these records and the vehicle information will display. The vehicle number and/or vehicle make, model and year must be entered manually if no record for a vehicle with the scanned license number exists on the tablet.



Figure 4-7 Sample Scan License / VIN Code 2

4.1.3.4 Manual Vehicle Selection

When the vehicle's VIN is not automatically retrievable through the vehicle's ECU, or the specific VIN is unknown, you can select the vehicle manually.

Step-by-step Vehicle Selection

This mode of vehicle selection is menu driven. Follow the screen prompts and make a series of choices. Each selection you make advances you to the next screen. A **Back** button at the lower right corner of the screen returns you to the previous screen. Procedures may vary by the vehicle being tested.

4.1.3.5 Alternative Vehicle Identification

Occasionally, the tablet may not be able to identify a vehicle. For these vehicles, the user may perform a generic OBDII or EOBD diagnostics. See *Generic OBD II Operations* on page 56 for additional information.

4.2 Diagnostics Screen Layout

This section describes how to navigate the Diagnostics interface and select test options.

4.2.1 Diagnostics Screen Layout

The Diagnostics screens typically includes six sections.



Figure 4-8 Sample Diagnostics Screen

- 1. Diagnostics Toolbar
- 2. Current Directory Path
- 3. Status Information Bar
- 4. Navigation Bar
- 5. Main Section

6. Functional Buttons

Diagnostics Toolbar

The Diagnostics Toolbar contains buttons that allow you to print or save the displayed data and perform other operations. The table below provides a brief description for the operations of the Diagnostics toolbar buttons:

Name	Button	Description			
Home		Returns to the MaxiSys Job Menu.			
Vehicle Swap	ৰ্জনি কানি	Exits the diagnostic session and returns to the vehicle menu screen to select another vehicle for testing.			
Settings	¢.	Opens the setting screen. See <i>Settings</i> on page 255.			
Print		Saves and prints a copy of the displayed data. See <i>Print</i> on page 256.			
Help		Provides instructions or tips for operations of various diagnostic functions.			
Save		 Opens a submenu for the 3 options to save data. Tap Save This Page to take a screenshot image Tap Save All Data to save a PDF file (used this save option when data displays on multiple screens) Tap Start Saving to record a video clip (available for recording Live Data or graph data only) These files are stored in Data Manager application for later reviews. See Data Manager on page 246. 			
Data Logging	ľ	Use this function when encountering an error when testing or diagnosing a vehicle. This function will record the communication data and ECU information of the test vehicle and send it to Autel's technical staff to review and provide solution. Go to the Support application to follow up the processing progress, see <i>Data Logging</i> on page 271.			

Table 4	4-2	Diagnostics	Toolbar	Ruttons
i abic ·	+-2	Diagnostics	TUUIDai	Dullons

> To print data in Diagnostics

- 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button on the MaxiSys Job Menu. The **Print** button on the diagnostic toolbar is available throughout the Diagnostics operations.
- 2. Tap **Print** and a drop-down menu displays.
 - a) **Print This Page** prints a screenshot copy of the current screen.
 - b) Print All Data prints a PDF copy of all displayed data.
- 3. A temporary file will be created and sent via the computer to the printer.
- 4. When the file is sent, a confirmation message displays.

Make sure the tablet and the printer are connected either by Wi-Fi or LAN before printing. For more instructions on printing, see *Print* on page 256 for details.

> To submit Data Logging reports in Diagnostics

- 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button from the MaxiSys Job Menu. The pen-shaped **Data Logging** button on the diagnostic toolbar is available throughout the whole Diagnostics operations.
- 2. Tap the **Data Logging** button (a pen icon) to open a selection box. Select from a list of errors to generally describe the problem encountered. A blue check mark will display adjacent to the error selected. Tap **OK** to continue.
- 3. A submission form will display to let you fill in the report information.
- 4. Tap the **Send** button in the upper right corner of the screen to submit the report form via the Internet, a confirmation message displays when sent successfully.

Status Information Bar

The Status Information Bar at the top of the Main Section displays the following items:

- 1. VCMI Icon indicates the communication status between the tablet and the VCMI device.
- 2. Battery Icon indicates the battery status of the vehicle.

Main Section

The Main Section varies depending on the stage of operations which shows vehicle identification selections, the main menu, test data, messages, instructions and other diagnostic information.

The Main Section can display as two format types, a topology map and a listing of vehicle modules.

A. Topology Tab Page

The Topology Tab Page displays a system distribution diagram of the vehicle control modules.

Land Rover		念 🗘	•	0	B	1	
Land Rover > Manual selection	Auto scan						VCM6 🖽 12.14V
🕰 Auto scan	Topology	List		•		7% 🗹 Se	lect systems
X Control unit		BS ARCM	всм нсм	OCS	PCM FDCN	A SASM	том
EO Test plan							I
Hot Function				PBM	R.M	тесм	VIM
Special function			нсмв	IPM8	РАМ		
Programming/ Customization	AH	ICM DSM F	CIMB	KVM	PDM		
	A	AM DABM	FEM SRM	TVM			
	A	PIM DACMC	REM TEL				Q
							Q
		Not score	SUBJMOST	CANLHS	-7- No response CANUMS		
VIN: Info: Land Rover/Range rover sport		Test plan	Report	Quick erase	Pause	Enter system	ESC
•	Ø	i	n vo	<i>m</i> 8	a 57		(i) V 100% (1:09

Figure 4-9 Sample Topology Tab Page

Tap a module to perform further diagnosis and test. A Function Menu screen (Figure 4-11) will display.

B. List Tab Page

Column 1 – displays the system numbers.

Column 2 – displays the scanned systems.

Column 3 - displays the scan results.

- -!-: Indicates that the scanned system may not support the code reading function, or there is a communication error between the tester and the control system.
- \diamond -?-: Indicates that the vehicle control system has been detected, but the tester cannot access it.
- Fault | #: Indicates there is/are detected fault code(s) present; "#" indicates the quantity of detected faults.
- ✤ Pass | No Fault: Indicates the system was scanned and no fault has been detected.
- ♦ Not Scanned: Indicates the system has not been scanned.
- ♦ No Response: Indicates the system has not received a response.

Land Rover > Manual selecti	n > Auto scan	VCM	12.35		
🕰 Auto scan	Topology List	🗆 17% 🗹 Selec	17% 🗹 Select systems		
X Control unit	1 PCM(Powertrain control module)	Fault 1			
EQ Test plan	2 TCM(Transmission control module)	Pass No Fault			
Hot Function	3 ABS(ABS control module)	Pass No Fault			
Special function	4 RCM(Restraints control module)	PassINo Fault			
Programming/ Customization	5 IPC(Instrument cluster control module)	Fault 2			
	6 PBM(Parking brake control module)	Pass(No Fault			
	7 BCM(Body control module)	Fault 2			
	9 ATCM(All terrain control module)	Not scanned			
VIN: Info: Land Rover/Range rove sport	Test plan Report Quick Pause	Enter system	ESC		

Figure 4-10 Sample List Tab Page

Functional Buttons

The type of Functional Buttons displayed on the bottom of the screen vary by operation. Function include navigation, reporting and code clearing. The functions of these buttons will be described in the following sections when relevant.

The table below provides a brief description of the Functional Buttons' operations in Auto Scan:

Name	Description
Report	Displays the diagnostic data in the report form.
Quick Erase	Erases DTC records and other data from the ECM.
Fault Scan	Scans vehicle system modules.
Pause	Pauses the scanning process.
Enter System	Enters the ECU system.
ESC	Returns to the previous screen or exit Auto Scan.

Table 4-3	Functional	Buttons	in	Diagnostics	Screen
-----------	------------	----------------	----	-------------	--------

Select one of the system modules from the Topology or List, and tap **Enter System** to enter the specific system functions

🖉 ΝΟΤΕ

The Diagnostic Buttons Toolbar (located on the top pf the screen) will be active throughout the diagnostic session for such tasks as printing and saving the displayed data, obtaining help information, or performing data logging

V2.00		Q	6	C C			
Mercedes-Benz > Automatic selection >	Auto scan > ME 9.7-	Viotor electronics	9.7				VCM6 🖽 12.03V
ECU information				Note			
Read codes							
Event Code							
Live data							
Active test				-			
Control unit adaptations		Please sele	ct functior	items on	the left f	or diagnosis.	
Recial functions							
VIN:WDD2211566L001930							
Info: Benz/221.156 S350 Gasoline							ESC
					~	-	

Figure 4-11 Sample Function Menu Screen

Available functions may vary by vehicle. The function menu may include:

- ECU Information displays detailed ECU information. Select to display information screen.
- Read Codes displays detailed DTC information retrieved from the vehicle control module.
- Event Codes a small category of fault codes.
- Live Data retrieves and displays live data and parameters from the vehicle's ECU.
- Active Test provides specific subsystem and component tests. This selection may display as Actuators, Actuator Test, or Function Tests. Available test vary by vehicle.
- Control Unit Select to directly locate a needed control system for testing. Follow the menu driven procedure, and make proper selections to be guided to appropriate module and function menu.

Audi VIL 99	1	\$	0 B	1				
Audi > System selection > Cor	itrol unit			VCM6 ET DV				
🕰 Auto scan		Control unit						
CanGateway scan	01 - Engine Control Module 1	02 - Transmission Control Module	03 - Brakes 1	04 - Steering Angle Sender				
Hot Function	05 - Kessy	06 - Seat Adjustment Passenger Side	07 - Display Control Unit	08 - Air Conditioning				
	09 - Central Electrics	0B - Auxiliary Air Heater	0C - Rear Axle Steering 2	0D - Sliding Door Left				
	0E - Media Player Position 1	0F - Radio Tuner - Digital	10 - Parking Assistance 2	11 - Engine Control Module 2				
VIN: Info: Audi		*****		ESC				
 ★ Â 	0	VC 🔝	Mi 🛱 🖓	≑ 意745直€04				

Figure 4-12 Sample Control Unit Screen

• **Special Functions** – provides component adaptation or variant coding functions for custom configurations, and allows entry of adaptive values for certain components after repairs.

Screen Messages

Messages display when additional input is needed before proceeding. There are mainly three main types of on-screen messages: Confirmation, Warning, and Error.

• Confirmation Messages

This type of messages usually displays as an "Information" screen, when you are about to perform an action that cannot be reversed or when an action has been initiated and your confirmation is needed to continue.

When a user-response is not required, the message displays briefly.

• Warning Messages

This type of messages displays when completing the selected action may result in an irreversible change or loss of data. An example of this message is the "Erase Codes" message.

• Error Messages

Error messages display when a systemic or procedural error has occurred. Possible errors include cable disconnection and communication interruption.

4.2.2 Making Selections

The Diagnostics application is a menu-driven program that presents a series of options one at a time. As you select from a menu, the next menu in the series displays. Each selection narrows the focus and leads to the desired test. Use your fingertip or the stylus pen to make menu selections.

4.3 Auto Scan

The Auto Scan function performs a comprehensive scanning of all the systems in the vehicle ECU to locate faults and retrieve DTCs. Tap Fault Scan to start. Systems with no faults detected will display in green; systems containing faults will display orange.

> To perform Auto Scan function

1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button on the MaxiSys Job Menu. Choose the corresponding vehicle information and enter the vehicle diagnostic page.

8mw V1.00		Ŧ	\$	•	0		B	1	
Bmw > Automatic selection									VCM6 ⊞ 11.91V
Automatic selection				Select	vehicle info	rmation			
Manual selection	Chassis serie	\$							5'_E60 >
	Model								525LI_N52 >
	Version								CHN_LL >
	Model year								2007_04 >
	VIN								SB48053 >
VIN: Info:							ок	Reset	ESC
↑ ∧	6	Ø	*	M	ŪC₩2	A	5		(2) ₹ 74% 29.20

Figure 4-13 Sample Vehicle Selection Screen

2. The Topology tab page displays in the main section. Tap the **Fault Scan** button on the bottom of the screen to scan the vehicle system modules.

Bmw v1.00	1	¢ 3	8	0	B	1	
Bmw > Automatic selection	> Auto scan					,	CN6 🖹 11.91V
🕰 Auto scan	Topology	List				🗹 Sel	ect systems
X Control unit		CAS	(ARIS R.S	SINE HOMEI	FEE RITHESEN	26	
🗐 Test plan	785	875 LN 715	00	NUMA			
Special function	2014 021	DIVERSOR BOT					
Hot Function		560 TE,082.F	-				
2 Programming	Task						
Vehicle profile							
							Q
							Q
		Not scann K-CAN	ed Pass MOST	Fault CanDiog	-7: No response mose PT-0	AN	
VIN:LBVNU57087SB48053 Info: BMW/57525LI_N52/E6 CHN_LL	50/	Test plan	Report	Quick erase	Fault scan	Enter system	ESC
♠ Â	• •	0	M	ŪCM∦ €	F		⑦ 〒 74% ■ 9.27

Figure 4-14 Sample Auto Scan Screen 1

3. A system scanned with no fault detected displays in green; a system scanned with faults detected will display in orange.

V1.00	M A	• •¥	-			-	
Bmw > Automatic selection > Aut	o scan					1	/CM6 == 11.91V
🕰 Auto scan	Topology	List	,		1	00% 🗹 Sel	ect systems
Control unit		5/5 OVA BIL			HEC BINESS	75	
🗐 Test plan	745	95 ^{°°} U 190					
Special function	2011 S2 0	WEXXE 800 (10	Concerno				
Hot Function	Lesson Contract	un (11,011) (11)					
Programming	M087						
E Vehicle profile							
							Q
							Q
		Not scanner K-CAN	i Pass Fa	alt 🔳 de 🔳 d	P No response per PT-C		
VIN:LBVNU570875B48053 Info: BMW/57525LI_N52/E60/ CHN_LI		Test plan	Report	Quick	Fault scan	Enter	ESC
onness.				erase		system	
		-	A 5		-		

Figure 4-15 Sample Auto Scan Screen 2

4.3.1 Test Plan

The Test Plan function intelligently prioritizes DTCs and leads the user to the proper repair. This function is initially available for a subset of vehicles with extensive coverage to follow in subsequent software updates.

> To perform Test Plan function

1. Tap Test Plan from the bottom functional buttons, or tap Test Plan in the

navigation bar to the left of the screen, then select **Test Plan** in the main section.

Bmw V1.00	1 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	🖶 🔘 🖻	1
8mw > Automatic selection > Te	est plan		VCN6 🟥 11.91V
Auto scan		Test plan	
X Control unit	Test plan		
EQ Test plan	reerpan		
Find Special function			
Hot Function			
Programming			
Reference Profile			
VIN:LBVNU57087SB48053 Info: BMW/57525LI_N52/E60/ CHN_LL			ESC
• ^	0	🟦 ŪCMI 🛱 🖇	

Figure 4-16 Sample Test Plan Screen 1

2. A test plan displays with recommended test or procedures to perform. Items with higher priority should be tested first.

Bmw > Automatic selection	> Auto scan > Test	plan			VCM6 ==	11.91V
🕰 Auto scan		Test plan				
	Туре	Description	Status	Priority	Opt	ion
	Service function		Not per- formed		•	\odot
Ē⊙ Test plan	Service	Ignition circuit, safety system (airbag)	Not per- formed	2	0	0
Special function	Service function	Voltage supply for Central Information Display (CID)	Not per- formed	4	0	0
Hot Function	Service function	Supply, instrument panel (KOMBI)	Not per- formed	5	0	•
Programming	Service function	Electric steering lock	Not per- formed	5	0	0
E Vehicle profile	Service function	Supply to Car Access System (CAS)	Not per- formed	6	0	•
	Service function	Seat belt buckle contact	Not per- formed	6	0	0
	Service function	Power supply, steering column switch cluster	Not per- formed	6	0	•
VIN:LBVNU57087SB48053			[)		

Figure 4-17 Sample Test Plan Screen 2

4. Tap the Substrain to test relative functions. Tap the Substrain button to display the system information in detail and tap button again to no longer display detail.

Bmw > Automatic selection	n > Test plan			VCM6 📑 11.91
🕰 Auto scan		Test plan		
	Туре	Description	Status	Priority Option
te Control unit	Service function	CBS pre-delivery check	Not per- formed	1 🖸 🔗
≣⊙ Test plan	0-Car Access S	Svetam		
Special function	AOAE Car Acc 1-SHD (Slide/T AdoE SHD (Slide/T)	cess System (CAS): transport mode active Tilt Sunroof)		
Hot Function	2-INSTR Instru 9312 KOMBI	ment cluster (Instrument Cluster): transport mode active		
Programming	 3-M-ASK (Audio A16B M-ASK- 4-SZM (Center 	o System Controller)-GW Gateway GW: transport mode active Console Switch Cluster)		
Rehicle profile	9FE9 SZL (Ce 5-CON Control	nter Console Switch Cluster): transport mode active ler		
	A200 CON: tr G-Driver Seat M	ransport mode active		
	• 9E6E SMFA (E	Driver Seat Module): transport mode active		
	7-Front Passer	nger Seat Module		
	• 9ECE SMBF (F	Front Passenger Seat Module): transport mode active		
	8-Central Infor	mation Display (CID)		
	J A46C Central	Information Display (CID): transport mode active		
VIN:LBVNU57087SB48053 Info: BMW/5/525LLN52/E	60/			D
				Run ESC

Figure 4 18 Sample Test Plan Screen 3

5. Press **OK** to continue.



Figure 4 19 Sample Test Plan Screen 4

6. Follow the instructions on the tablet to complete action.

4.4.1 Read Codes

This function retrieves and displays the DTCs from the vehicle control system. The Read Codes screen varies for each vehicle being tested. For some vehicles, freeze frame data can also be retrieved for viewing. A sample Read Codes screen displays as below:



Figure 4-20 Sample Read Codes Screen

- 1. Diagnostics Toolbar see *Table 4-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons* on page 31 for details.
- 2. Current Directory Path
- 3. Status Information Bar
- 4. Navigation Bar
- 5. Main Section
 - Column 1 displays the retrieved codes from the vehicle.
 - Column 2 indicates the status of the retrieved codes.
 - Column 3 detailed descriptions for the retrieved codes.
- 6. Functional Buttons
 - **DTC guide** tap to check related repair cases and help information.
 - Freeze Frame icon displays when freeze frame data is available for viewing; Tap icon to display data screen. The Freeze Frame interface is similar to that of the Read Codes interface and share similar operations.

- Search tap to search the selected DTC for additional information on the Internet.
- **Erase codes** tap to erase codes from the vehicle. It is recommended that DTCs are read and needed repairs are performed before erasing codes.
- **Read codes** retrieves and displays the DTCs from the vehicle control system. The Read Codes screen varies for each vehicle being tested.
- **ESC** tap it to return to the previous screen or exit the function.

4.1.2 Erase Codes

After reading the retrieved codes from the vehicle and certain repairs have been made, you can erase the codes from the vehicle using this function. Before performing this function, make sure the vehicle's ignition key is in the ON (RUN) position with the engine off.

> To erase codes

- 1. Tap **Erase Codes** in the Function Menu.
- A warning message displays to inform you of data loss when this function is applied.
 - a) Tap **Yes** to continue. A confirming screen displays when the operation is successfully done.
 - b) Tap **No** to exit.
- 3. Tap **ESC** on the confirming screen to exit Erase Codes.
- 4. Check the Read Codes function again to ensure the operation is successful.

4.5 Live Data

When this function is selected, the screen displays the data list for the selected module. The data available for any control module varies by vehicle. The parameters display in the order that they are transmitted by the ECM, so expect variation among vehicles.

Gesture scrolling allows you to quickly move through the data list. Touch the screen and drag your finger up or down to reposition the parameters being displayed if the data occupies more than one screen. The figure below displays a typical Live Data screen:



Figure 4-21 Sample Live Data Screen

- 1. Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons see *Table 4-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons* on page 31 for detailed descriptions of the operations for each button.
- 2. Current Directory Path
- 3. Status Information Bar
- 4. Navigation Bar
- 5. Main Section
 - Name Column this column displays the parameter names.
 - a) Check Box tap the check box to the left of a parameter name to select the item. Tap the check box again to deselect it.
 - b) Drop-down Button tap the drop-down button on the right side of the parameter name to open a submenu, which provides optional modes in which to display the data.
 - Value Column displays the values of the parameter items.
 - Unit Column displays the unit for the parameter values.
 - To change the Unit mode, tap the Setting button in the top toolbar and select a required mode. See Unit on page 255.

Display Mode

There are four types of display modes available for data viewing, allowing you to view various types of parameters in the mode best suited to represent the data.

Tap the drop-down button on the right side of the parameter name to open a submenu. There are 4 buttons to configure the data display mode, plus one **Help** button on the right, active when additional information is available for your reference.

Each parameter item displays the selected mode independently.

- ♦ Analog Gauge Mode displays the parameters in gauge charts.
- ♦ Text Mode the default mode that displays the parameters as a text list.

Ø NOTE

Status parameters, such as a switch reading like ON, OFF, ACTIVE, and ABORT can only be displayed in Text Mode. Value parameters, such as a sensor reading, can be displayed in both text and graph modes.

♦ Waveform Graph Mode – displays the parameters in waveform graphs.

In this mode, three control buttons will display on the right side of the parameter item, allowing you to manipulate the display status.

- Text Button resumes Text Display Mode.
- Scale Button changes the scale values, which are displayed below the waveform graph. There are four scales available: x1, x2, x4 and x8.
- Zoom-in Button tap once to display the selected data graph in full screen.
- Digital Gauge Mode displays the parameters in the form of a digital gauge graph.
- Full Screen Display this option is only available in the waveform graph mode, and mostly used in Graph Merge status for data comparison. There are three control buttons available on the top right side of the screen under this mode.
 - Edit Button tap to open an edit window, in which you can set the waveform color and the line thickness displayed for the selected parameter item.
 - Scale Button tap to change the scale values below the waveform graph. There are four scales available: x1, x2, x4 and x8.
 - Zoom-out Button tap to exit full screen display.
- > To edit the waveform color and line thickness in a data graph
 - 1. Select 1 to 3 parameter items to display in Waveform Graph mode.
 - 2. Tap the **Zoom-in Button** on the right side to display the data graph in full screen.
 - 3. Tap the **Edit Button**, and an edit window displays.

- 4. Select a parameter item from the left column.
- 5. Select a color from the second column.
- 6. Select a line thickness from the right column.
- 7. Repeat step 4 to 6 to edit the waveform for each parameter.
- 8. Tap **Done** to save the setting and exit, or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.
- 6. Functional Buttons

The operations of the available functional buttons on the Live Data screen are described below:

- ♦ Back returns to the previous screen or exits the function.
- Record starts recording the retrieved live data; the recorded data is then stored as a video clip in the Data Manager application for future reviews. This function can be triggered automatically at preset threshold values or manually. The triggering mode and record duration can be configured in the Setting mode of Live Data.
- ♦ Freeze displays the retrieved data in freeze mode.
 - Previous Frame moves to the previous frame of frozen data.
 - Next Frame moves to the next frame of frozen data.
- Resume this button displays when the Record or Freeze function is applied. Tap this button to stop data recording, or exit freeze data mode, and resumes normal data display mode.
- Flag this button displays when the Record function is applied. Tap this button to set flags to note points of interest when recording data. During playback in *Data Manager*, the preset flag will enable a popup window to allow for notes to be added.
- ♦ Clear Data tap this button to clear all previously retrieved parameter values.
- \diamond **To Top** moves a selected data item to the top of the list.
- Graph Merge tap this button to merge selected data graphs (for Waveform Graph Mode only). This function is very useful when comparing different parameters.

NOTE

This mode supports Graph Merge for 2 to 3 parameter items only. Select 2 or 3 parameters when creating a graph merge.

> To cancel Graph Merge mode, tap the drop-down button on the right side of the

parameter name, and select a data display mode.

- Show Selected/Show All tap this button to switch between the two options; one displays the selected parameter items, the other displays all the available items.
- Setting tap this button to open a setting screen to set the trigger mode, recording duration, and to set threshold values for data recording.

Cance	I)			Selected	Rec	ord		Done
Q Sea	arch		Batt	ery voltage	e signal(Unit:V)		
Battery v	oltage signai		N	lin		0		
			N	IAX		26		
			В	uzzer alar	m			OFF
÷	Â	Ø	0	*	M	ŪC₩2	F	

Figure 4-22 Sample Setting Mode in Live Data

There are four navigation buttons at the top of the **Setting** mode screen.

- Selected Button displays the configuration screen to set the threshold values, an upper limit and a lower limit, for triggering the buzzer alarm. This function is only applied to the Waveform Graph display mode.
 - a) MIN tap this button to display a virtual keyboard to enter the required lower limit value.
 - b) MAX tap this button to display a virtual keyboard to enter the required upper limit value.
 - c) Buzzer Alarm switches the alarm on and off. The alarm function makes a beep sound as an alert when the data reading reaches the preset minimum or maximum point.
- > To set threshold limits for the parameter values
 - 1. Tap the **Setting** button at the bottom of the Live Data screen.
 - 2. Tap the **Selected** navigation button.

- 3. Select a parameter item from the left column, or enter the item name in the Search bar.
- 4. Tap the **MIN** button on the right side, and enter the required minimum value.
- 5. Tap the **MAX** button on the right side, and enter the required maximum value.
- 6. Tap the **ON/OFF** button on the right side of the Alarm button to turn it on or off.
- 7. Tap **Done** to save the setting and return to the Live Data screen; or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.

When the limits are successfully set, two horizontal lines display on each of the data graphs (when Waveform Graph Mode is applied) to indicate the alarm point. The limit lines are shown in different colors for distinction from the parameter waveforms.

- **Record** displays the configuration screen for Record Setting, where you can set the trigger type, duration and trigger point for the data recording function.
 - a) Trigger Type sets the trigger mode for data recording. There are four options available:
 - 1) Manual allows you to manually start and stop data recording.
 - 2) DTC auto triggers data recording when any DTC is detected.
 - DTC Check Mode auto triggers data recording when certain pre-selected DTC types are detected.
 - 4) Parameter auto triggers data recording when any parameter value reaches the preset threshold.
 - b) Duration sets the recording time (for Auto trigger mode only).
 - c) Trigger Point reserves a relative percentage of a record length before the data recording start point for reference (for Auto trigger mode only).

> To perform setting for live data record

- 1. Tap the **Setting** functional button at the bottom of the Live Data screen.
- 2. Tap the **Record** navigation button.

- 3. Tap the > button to the right of the **Trigger Type** bar and select the required trigger mode.
- 4. Tap the > button to the right of the **Duration** bar and select a length of time.
- 5. Tap the > button to the right of the **Trigger Point** bar and select a relative percentage of a record length to be reserved before the data recording start point.
- 6. Tap **Done** to save the setting and return to the Live Data screen; or tap **Cancel** to exit without saving.
- **Done** confirms and saves the setting, and redirects you to the Live Data screen.
- Cancel cancels the setting operation, and redirects you to the Live Data screen.

4.6 Active Test

The Active Test function is used to access vehicle-specific subsystem and component tests. Available tests vary by vehicle.

During an active test, the tablet sends commands to the ECU to activate the actuators. This test determines the integrity of the system or part by reading ECU data, or by monitoring the operation of the actuators. Such tests may include switching a solenoid, relay, or switch, between two operating states.

Selecting Active Test displays a menu of test options. Available tests vary by vehicle. Select test from menu options. Follow the instructions displayed on the screen to complete test. Procedures and instructions vary by vehicle.



Figure 4-23 Sample Active Test Screen

The functional buttons in the lower right corner of the Active Test screen manipulate the test signals. The operational instructions are displayed in the main section of the test screen. Follow the on-screen instructions and make appropriate selections to complete the tests. Each time an operation is successfully executed, a message such as "Command Finished", or "Activation Successful" displays.

Tap the ESC functional button to exit the test when finished.

4.7 ECU Information

This function retrieves and displays the specific information for the tested control unit, including unit type and version numbers.



Figure 4-24 Sample ECU Information Screen

- 1. Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons see *Table 4-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons* on page 31 for detailed descriptions of the operations of each button.
- 2. Current Directory Path
- 3. Status Information Bar
- 4. Navigation Bar
- 5. Main Section the left column displays the item names; the right column displays the specifications or descriptions.
- Functional Button in this case, only a Back (or ESC) button is available; tap it to exit after viewing.

4.8 Special Functions

These functions perform various component adaptations, including the recalibration or configuration of certain components after repairs or replacements have been completed.

GM > Automatic selection >	Auto scan > Engine control module			VCM5 (ER 12.23V
ECU information		Special function		
Trouble codes	Brake pedal position	Crankshaft position	HO2S heater learn	Idle learn
🗠 Live data	sensor learn	(CRP) vanauon leann		
Retive test			Remote vehicle start	
Special function	Engine oil life reset	Fuel trim reset	disable history reset	
Inspection/ maintenance system information				
VIN:2G1FK3DJXC9107830 Info: GM/Chevrolet/Camaro				ESC

Figure 4-25 Sample Special Function Screen 1

Select function to display detailed Function information and execution screen.

I > Automatic selection >	Auto scan > Engine control module		VON6 FT 12.23		
ECU information	Brake pedal position sense	or learn(Automatic transm	nission)		
Trouble codes	Brake pedal position sensor learn	-			
 Live data 	Brake pedal position sensor signal	Applied			
Active test	Brake pedal position sensor	100	%		
Special function	Brake pedal position sensor	5	v		
Inspection/	Brake pedal position sensor learned released position	5	v		
system information	Current gear	Unrecognized state			
	Torque delivered signal	-0.25	Nm		
	Torque request inhibit - fuel	Yes			
	Torque request inhibit - minimum idle	Yes			
N:2G1FK3DJXC9107830					
to: GW/Chevrolet/Carnaro			Learn ESC		

Figure 4-26 Sample Special Function Screen 2

List Tab Page:

- Column 1 displays the description of the function being performed or displays live data corresponding to the special function
- Column 2 displays the execution status such as Completed, or Activated or may display live data values that correspond to the special function.
- Column 3 displays the measurement units of the live data.

Tap the **Learn** button to perform the selected function and tap the **ESC** button to exit the function.

4.9 Programming and Coding

Since the introduction of OBD II and leading up to modern Hybrids and EVs, hardware and software technologies in cars have been advancing at an exponential rate. Updating software may be the only way to fix the following issues:

- Drivability
- Fuel Efficiency
- Power Loss
- Fault Codes
- Durability of Mechanical Parts

The Programming and Coding function is used to re-flash the vehicle control modules, which allows you to update the computer software of the vehicle to the latest version, as well as to reprogram adaptive data of certain components after making repairs or replacements.

The programming function applies only when the vehicle is connected with a VCMI or J2534 programming device, which serves as a PassThru interface to establish communication with and transfer data to the vehicle's ECU.

Available programming or coding operations vary by test vehicle. Only the available operations display in the tablet menu.

There are two general types of programming operations:

- A. Coding also known as *Teach-in Program*, or *Component Adaptation*, is used to reprogram adaptive data for vehicle control modules after repairs or replacements of vehicle parts.
- B. Reprogramming Operations downloads the latest version of software from the online server database through Internet access (this procedure is done automatically when the tablet is connected to the Internet, so there is no need to check for software updates yourself), and reprograms the newest version into the vehicle's ECU.

🖉 ΝΟΤΕ

Ensure that the tablet is connected to a stable internet access before applying the ECU programming function, so that the tablet is able to obtain access to the vehicle manufacturer's server for update service.

Selecting the Programming or Coding function opens a menu of operation options that varies by vehicle make and model. Selecting a menu option either displays a programming interface or opens another menu of additional choices. Follow all screen instructions while performing the programming or coding operations. How and what information is presented on the screen vary by the type of operation being performed.

4.9.1 Coding

Mercedea-Benz > Automat	c selection > Programming	VCM6 (====================================		
🕰 Auto scan	Coding			
Control unit	Name	Code		
Hot functions	1.A/C compressor 2	Not fitted		
🖽 Programming	2.Shut-off valve Activated charcoal canister	Not fitted		
	3.Active Body Control	Not fitted		
	4.Pollutant standard	EU4, EU5 (Not applicable to model series X204, 207, 212)		
	5.Code	B13B6S0		
	6.Code	B13B7S0		
	7.Activated charcoal canister	Model series 216/221 (USA)		
	8.All-Wheel Drive	Not present		
/IN:WDDNG56898A3791! nfo: Benz/221.156 S350	3	Edia Transmia ECO		

Figure 4-27 Sample Coding Screen

The main section of the Coding screen displays a list of vehicle components and the coding information that mainly consists of two parts:

- 1. All available systems for coding are displayed on the left side, and the coding data or value on the right side.
- 2. The bottom of the main section displays the functional buttons that enable you to manipulate the operation.

Check the vehicle condition and the coding information carefully. Use the functional button to edit Codes for the corresponding components. Tap **Send** when you finish editing all items. When the operation is completed, an execution status message such as Completed, Finished or Successful, may display.

Tap the **ESC** button to exit the function.

4.9.2 Reprogramming Operation

Before reprogramming begins:

- It is mandatory that Ultra tablet is connected to stable Wi-Fi network.
- Tablet must be connected to VCMI by USB.
- Tablet battery must be fully charged during module programming. Connect tablet to charger if needed.
- Attach battery maintainer to vehicle battery to ensure a steady voltage is

maintained throughout programming. Voltage requirements differ by vehicle manufacturer. Consult vehicle manufacturer recommendations prior to programming a module.

• Do not quit the application during a module reprogramming as the process may fail and may also result in permanent damage to the module.

Typical reprogramming operations require you to input and validate VIN number first. Tap the input box and enter the correct number. The programming interface then displays.

Mercedes-Benz		(Fig	\$	1	0	B	1	
Mercedes-Benz > Automat	ic selection > Proc	ramming						VCM6 == 12.06V
🙉 Auto scan				Control m	odule progra	mming		
📰 Control unit	Do you wa	ant to exchan	ge the data	medium no	v?			
Hot functions	ETC-Electr Control mo Current co New contro	ronic transmis >dule hardwar ntrol unit softv >l unit softwar	ision control e number:00 ware version re version:10	134460310 :0104482510 009024807 0				
원교 Programming	Note: 1.Please c 2.Tum off 3.The diag 4.Please d	onnect the bat all electrical o nostic connec o not carry ou	ttery charger onsumers.S :tor must ren t any proced	: witch off wind nain plugged ures on the v	Ishield wiper. In to the vehicl shicle during c	e. ontrol module pr	ogramming if (possible.
VIN:4JGBF2FE6BA625002 Info: Benz/164.825 GL320	Diesel					Yes	No	ESC
• ô			*[ŵ	จิ๊ะกมู 🕯			🗢 100% 🛿 19:36

Figure 4-28 Sample Reprogramming Operation Screen

The main section of the reprogramming interface offers information of the hardware, the current software version and the newest software versions to be programmed into the control units.

A series of on-screen operational instructions will display to guide you through the programming procedure.

Carefully read the on-screen information and follow the instruction to execute the programming procedure.

4.9.3 Re-flash Errors

IMPORATANT

When reprogramming onboard, always make sure the vehicle battery is fully charged and in good working condition. During reprogramming, the operation may fail if voltage falls below the proper operation voltage. Sometimes a failed operation can be recovered, but the failed reprogramming can also ruin the control module. We recommend connecting an external battery maintainer to the vehicle to ensure a steady voltage is maintained throughout programming. The required voltage differs by vehicle manufacturer. Consult vehicle manufacturer for correct voltage to be maintained.

Occasionally a flash update procedure may not complete properly. Common causes of flash errors include poor cable connections between the tablet, VCMI, and vehicle, the vehicle ignition being switched off before the flash procedure is complete, or low vehicle battery voltage.

If the process quits, recheck all the cable connections to assure good communications and initialize the flash procedure. The programming procedure will automatically repeat if the previous operation does not succeed.

4.10 Generic OBD II Operations

The OBD II/EOBD vehicle diagnosis option offers a quick way to check for DTCs, isolate the cause of an illuminated malfunction indicator lamp (MIL), check monitor status prior to emissions certification testing, verify repairs, and perform other emissions-related services. The OBDII direct access option is also used for testing OBD II/EOBD-compliant vehicles that are not included in the Diagnostics database. Diagnostics toolbar buttons at the top of the screen are available for specific vehicle diagnostics. See *Table 4-2 Diagnostics Toolbar Buttons* on page 31 for details.

General Procedure

- > To access the OBD II/EOBD diagnostics functions
 - 1. Tap the **Diagnostics** application button in the MaxiSys Job Menu. The Vehicle Menu displays.
 - 2. Tap the **EOBD** button. There are two options to establish communication with the vehicle.
 - Auto Scan select it to establish communication using each protocol in order to determine which one the vehicle is using.
 - Protocol select it to open a submenu of various protocols. A communication protocol is a standardized way of data communication between an ECM and a diagnostic tool. Global OBD may use several different communication protocols.
 - Select a specific protocol if the Protocol option is selected. Wait for the OBD II Diagnostic Menu to appear.

EOBD VIL 99	M	2 1	¢ 🖷	0	B	1	
EOBD							VCM6 ET 12.12V
AND DTC&FFD				Note			
(///) I/M Readiness							
}∾ Live Data							
On-Board Monitor							
Component Test				107			
Pehicle information		Pleas	e select functio	n items on t	he left for diag	nosis.	
P Vehicle Status							
Info: EOBD/ISO 15765-4(CAN)							ESC
^	9		i M	∇CM [™]	8		⑤ ● ≑ 235 ≜ 6.00

Figure 4-29 Sample OBD II Diagnostic Menu

- 4. Select a function option to continue.
 - DTC & FFD
 - I/M Readiness
 - Live Data
 - O2 Sensor Monitor
 - On-Board Monitor
 - Component Test
 - Vehicle Information
 - Vehicle Status

Support functions may vary by vehicle.

Function Descriptions

This section describes the various functions of each diagnostic option:

DTC & FFD

When this function is selected, the screen displays a list of Stored Codes and Pending Codes. When the Freeze Frame data of certain DTCs are available for viewing, a snowflake button will display on the right side of the DTC item. The Erase Codes function can be applied by tapping the functional button at the bottom of the screen.

EOBD			VCM6 FR 12.12V			
AC DTC&FFD			Trouble codes			
	DTC	Status	Description			
(////) (/M Readiness	? P0021	\$7E8 Stored	A Camshaft position timing over-advanced or system performance bank 2.			
₩ Live Data	U0101	\$7E8 Pending	Lost communication with TCM.			
On-Board Monitor	U0102	\$7E8 Pending	Lost communication with transfer case control module.			
🐨 Component Test	(U0103	\$7E8 Pending	Lost communication with gear shift control module A.			
Vehicle information	U0104	\$7E8 Pending	Lost communication with cruise control module.			
P Vehicle Status	U0105	\$7E8 Pending	Lost communication with fuel injector control module.			
	U0106	\$7E8 Pending	Lost communication with glow plug control module.			
	U0107	\$7E8 Pending				
		¢7E9				
VIN: LVSFCFAE1 6F015498	DTC quide	Freeze	arch Erase Read Defrach ESC			

Figure 4-30 Sample DTC & FFD Screen

Stored Codes

Stored codes are emission-related DTCs from the ECM of the vehicle. OBD II/EOBD Codes have a priority according to their emission severity, with higher-priority codes overwriting lower-priority ones. The priority of the code determines the illumination of the Malfunction Indicator Light (MIL) and the codes erase procedure. Manufacturers rank codes differently, so DTCs may vary by vehicle.

• Pending Codes

These are codes whose storing conditions have been met during the last drive cycle, but need to be met on two or more consecutive drive cycles before the DTC stored. The purpose of displaying pending codes is to assist the service technician after a vehicle repair when diagnostic information is cleared, by reporting test results after a single driving cycle.

- a) If a test fails during the driving cycle, the DTC associated is reported. If the pending fault does not occur again within 40 to 80 warm-up cycles, the fault is automatically cleared from memory.
- Test results reported do not necessarily indicate a faulty component or system. If test results indicate another failure after additional driving, a DTC is stored to indicate a faulty component or system.

• Freeze Frame

In most cases the stored frame is the last DTC reported. Certain DTCs, those that have a greater impact on vehicle emission, have a higher priority. In these cases, DTC of the highest priority is the one for which the freeze frame records are

retained. Freeze frame data includes a "snapshot" of critical parameter values at the time the DTC is stored.

Erase Codes

This option is used to clear all emission-related diagnostic data including DTCs, freeze frame data and specific manufacturer-enhanced data from the vehicle ECM. This option resets the I/M Readiness Monitor Status for all vehicle monitors to Not Ready or Not Complete status.

A confirmation screen displays when the clear codes option is selected to prevent accidental loss of data. Select **Yes** on the confirmation screen to continue, or **No** to exit.

I/M Readiness

This function is used to check the readiness of the monitoring system. It is an excellent function to use prior to having a vehicle inspected for state emissions compliance. Selecting I/M Readiness opens a submenu with two choices:

- Since DTCs Cleared displays the status of monitors since the last time the DTCs are erased.
- This Driving Cycle displays the status of monitors since the beginning of the current drive cycle.

Live Data

This function enables the display of real-time PID data from the ECU. Displayed data includes analog and digital input and output, and system status information broadcast in the vehicle data stream.

Live data can be displayed in various modes, see *4.5 Live Data* on page 43 for detailed information.

O2 Sensor Monitor

This function allows retrieval and review of recent O2 sensor monitor test results stored on the vehicle's on-board computer.

The O2 Sensor Monitor test function is not supported by vehicles that communicate using a controller area network (CAN). For O2 Sensor Monitor tests results of CAN-equipped vehicles, refer to *On-Board Monitor*.

On-Board Monitor

This function allows you to view the results of On-Board Monitor tests. The tests are useful after the service when a vehicle's control module memory is already erased.

Component Test

This function enables dual-directional control of the ECM so that the diagnostic tool can transmit control commands to operate the vehicle systems. This function is useful in determining how well the ECM responds to a command.

Vehicle Information

This function enables the display of the vehicle identification number (VIN), calibration identification number, calibration verification number (CVN), and other information of the test vehicle.

Vehicle Status

This function checks the current condition of the vehicle, such as the communication protocols of OBD II modules, number of fault codes, and status of the Malfunction Indicator Light (MIL).

4.11 Diagnostic Report

Pre-Scan and Post-Scan

- > To perform the pre-scan and post-scan functions:
 - 1. Auto SCAN the Vehicle the Auto VID function can automatically identify the vehicle and its equipped systems. All available modules in all systems will be scanned automatically. Then DTCs and code details will be listed.
 - 2. Print Pre-SCAN Report vehicle images can be taken with tablet and attached to SCAN report. The report file can be generated and submitted. The report can be customized with shop and vehicle information.
 - 3. Repair Vehicle creates efficient repair plan from the start.
 - 4. Auto SCAN Repaired Vehicle ensures no new faults were created during repair and no DTCs are present at completion.
 - 5. Print Post-SCAN Report proves all DTCs on Pre-SCAN report are fixed.

Diagnostic Report PDF

The diagnostic report can be reviewed, saved, and printed in multiple applications of the Ultra platform.

- a) Via the **History** function:
 - Enter the Diagnosis main page, and tap **History** in the Top Toolbar.

	All	Favorites	History	America	Europe	Asia	China		۹
2019.7							8 Rec	ords	
2003 Ford LS Ford/2003/LS VIN:						DTC Count: 2019-07-03 0	16:49:07	0	8
2008 Saab Saab 9-3 Sport (94 Saab/2008/Saab 9-3 Sport (9440) 1 V	40) (IN:					DTC Count: 2019-07-03 0	16:24:31	0	8
2008 Saab Saab 9-3 Sport (94 Saab/2008/Saab 9-3 Sport (9440) \	40) 'IN:					DTC Count: 2019-07-03 0	15:30:26	0	8
Ferrari 430 (F131E) Ferrari/430 (F131E) VIN:						DTC Count: 2019-07-03 0	11:26:42	0	8
Ferrari 430 (F131E) Ferrari/430 (F131E) VIN:						DTC Count: 2019-07-03 0	11:07:13	0	8
2016 Test 333 Test/2016/333 VIN:						DTC Count: 2019-07-02 1	0.27:29	0	8
2016 Test 333 Test/2016/333 I VIN:						DTC Count: 2019-07-02 1	0:21:09	0	0
LT3/ I VIN:						DTC Count: 2019-07-01 0	17:20:41	0	8
 ↑ ↑	9	O .	1	VCM	01			学 怠10	0% 🛙 5:08

Figure 4-31 Sample History Screen

 Select a history record, and tap the web button in the upper right corner to view, print, email or delete the PDF document.

-			/		
Title	2015 JEEP BU-RENEGADE		View PDF		
Vehicle informa				•	Print
Year	2015	VIN			Email
Make	JEEP	License		6	Delete
Model	BU-RENEGADE	Odometer Mileage		_	
Sub model		Color			
Engine		Status	Not started		
Service record					
Technician					
Technician					
Notes					
Customer infor					-
• ^		а Vсми	8 6		♡ \$485.0 10:00

Figure 4-32 Sample Historical Test Screen

- b) Via the Auto Scan function:
 - Enter the Auto Scan page and tap **Fault Scan** in the Functional Button Bar at the bottom of the screen.

Mercedes-Benz V2.00	☆ 🌫 🌣 🖶 🔍 🖻	1	
Mercedes-Benz > Automatic	selection > Auto scan		VCM6 🖽 OV
🕰 Auto scan	System List	🗹 Sele	ect systems
X Control unit	1 ME-Motor Electronics (ME) 'ME97' for combustion engine 'M272'	Not scanned	
Hot functions	2 VGS-Transmission control for 7-speed transmission	Not scanned	
Programming	3 ESP-Electronic Stability Program	Not scanned	
🕞 Retrofit	4 SRS-Supplemental Restraint System	Not scanned	
	5 KI-Instrument cluster	Not scanned	
	6 PTS-Parking system Ackes	Not scanned	
	7 SAMF-Front Signal Acquisition and Actuation Module (SAM)	Not scanned	
	8 SAMR-Rear Signal Acquisition and Actuation Module (SAM)	Not scanned	
	9 ZGW-Central gateway	Not scanned	
VIN:WDD2040541A123456 Info: Benz/204.054 C (204) G	asoline Report Quick erase Fault scan	Enter system	ESC
^	🔲 🧑 🙆 🔤 🏫 Von; 🙈 🙈		○ 2 67% 9 9.51

Figure 4-33 Sample Auto Scan Screen 1

When the system scan is completed, tap **Report** in the Functional Button Bar at the bottom of the screen.

Mercedes-benz > Automati	c selection > Auto scan	W.	NOIS [-+] UV
🕰 Auto scan	System List	100% 🗹 Select :	system
Control unit	1 ME-Motor Electronics (ME) 'ME97' for combustion engine 'M272'	Fault 34	
Hot functions	2 VGS-Transmission control for 7-speed transmission	Fault 7 🔍	
Programming	3 ESP-Electronic Stability Program	Fault 7 🔍	
🔁 Retrofit	4 SRS-Supplemental Restraint System	Fault 1 🔍	
	5 KI-Instrument cluster	Fault 1	
	6 PTS-Parking system	ACAS Fault 1	
	7 SAMF-Front Signal Acquisition and Actuation Module (SAM)	Fault 1	
	8 SAMR-Rear Signal Acquisition and Actuation Module (SAM)	Pass No Fault	
	9 ZGW-Central gateway	Pass No Fault	
VIN:WDD2040541A123456 Info: Benz/204.054 C (204)	Gasoline Report Quick Faul	t scan Enter	ESC

Figure 4-34 Sample Auto Scan Screen 2

 Tap the button in the Diagnostics Toolbar, and select Save all data to save the PDF document or select Save this page to save the screen shot of the current page.

	M	X 1				
Mercedes-Benz > Automat	ic selection > Auto sca	n				VCM6 🖽 OV
🕰 Auto scan			Mercedes-Benz V	Save	this page	
X Control unit	MERCEDES	Customer : Contact Phone :	WDD20405414123456	Save	all data	oedes-Benz
Hot functions	BENZ	License Plate NO.: Color:	WDD2040341A123430	SL	ab Model :	.054 c (204) latsom
Programming		Path :	Mercedes-Benz>Automatic selection	on>Auto scan> M	ileage :	
P=0 Retront	A second and					
β≡₀ κetroiπ	A total of 26 ver For safe driving,	nicle system was , Please carefully	scanned, of which 10 of the sys analyze the report and repair re	items were faul lated fault com	t and the number of ponents.	faults was 59.
γ≕₀ κeiroπ	A total of 26 vet For safe driving, Report for syst	nicle system was , Please carefully 'em status	scanned, of which 10 of the sys analyze the report and repair re	items were faul lated fault com	t and the number of ponents.	faults was 59. Status
γ≕ ₀ κetroπ	A total of 26 vet For safe driving, Report for syst System ME-Motor Elec	hicle system was , Please carefully Iem status tronics (ME) 'ME	scanned, of which 10 of the sys analyze the report and repair re 297 for combustion engine 'W	items were faul lated fault com 1272'	t and the number of ponents. Number of faults 34	faults was 59. Status Fault
	Overview A total of 26 vet For safe driving, Report for syst System ME-Motor Elec VGS-Transmiss	hicle system was Please carefully em status tronics (ME) 'ME sion control for 7	scanned, of which 10 of the sys analyze the report and repair re 297' for combustion engine 'N 7-speed transmission	items were faul lated fault com 1272'	t and the number of ponents. Number of faults 34 7	faults was 59. Status Fault Fault
VIN:WDD2040541A12345 Info: Benz/204.054 C (204	A total of 26 vef For safe driving, Report for syst System ME-Motor Elec VGS-Transmiss 3 Gazoline	hicle system was , Please carefully Iem status tronics (ME) 'ME sion control for 7	scanned, of which 10 of the sys analyze the report and repair re 597 for combustion engine 1k 7-speed transmission	items were faul lated fault com 1272'	t and the number of ponents. Number of faults 34 7	faults was 59. Status Fault Fault ESC

Figure 4-35 Sample Auto Scan Screen 3

2	019-06-10_09-40-19.pdf		≣ Q :
Adds			
	2007_04 Bmw Vehicle Diagnostic Report		
BMW	Customer:	Make: Bmw	
	Contact Phone:	Year: 2007_04	
	VIN: LBVNU57087SB48053	Model: 57525LL_N52	
	Licenso Plate:	Sub Model: E60/CHN LL	
	Colar:	Engine:	
	Path: Bmw>Automatic selection>Auto scan>	Mileage:	
Report for	system status	DTC Count	Status
Engine-DM	E Motor Electronics	0	Pass
EGS (Electr	onic Transmission Control) 6HP transmission control	6	Fault
ABS-DSC	PLUS	10	Fault
	्म <i>9,</i> २		Ω
•		a a	(j) ♥ 71% ■ 9.41

Figure 4-36 Sample PDF Document Screen

- c) Via the functions on the Navigation Bar:
 - The diagnostic report can also be viewed from such diagnostics functions screen including Auto Scan, Read Codes, Live Data, And Active Test. Tap the
 button in the Diagnostics Toolbar, and select Save all data to save the PDF document or select Save this page to save the screen shot of the current page.

Course and			Ros	Save this page	
ECU Information	DTC	Status	Descrip		
E Read codes	0060	Current and Stored	Adjustmer carried out with a	Save all data	R
<u>//</u> Live data	0064	Current and Stored	Adjustment of the carried out with a	outlet camshaft (cylinder bank 2) is delay.	P
Active test	0073	Current and Stored	Accelerator Pedal short circuit to ba	Position Sensor (APPS) 1 has a ttery (+)	₽.
adaptations	0204	Current and Stored	Adaptation of the actuator was not	idle position of the throttle valve carried out.	₽
	0272	Current and Stored	Adjustment of the carried out with a	inlet camshaft (cylinder bank 1) is delay.	P
	0365	Current and Stored	The output for the	alternator actuation is faulty.	R.
	0521	Current and Stored	The charge move	ment flap (cylinder bank 1) is faulty.	R
	0522	Current and Stored	The charge move	ment flap (cylinder bank 1) is faulty.	R
		Current and			-
1N:WDD2040541A123456 nfo: Benz/204.054 C (204) I	Gasoline	DTC guide	Freeze frame Sea	rch Erase Read	ESC

Figure 4-37 Sample Read Codes Screen

4.12 Exit Diagnostics

The Diagnostics application operates while communication with the vehicle is still active. It is important to properly exit from the diagnostics operation interface to stop all communications with the vehicle before closing the Diagnostics application.

NOTE

Damage to the vehicle electronic control module (ECM) may occur if communication is disrupted. Ensure all forms of communication link such as data cable, USB cable, and wireless or wired network, are properly connected throughout the test. Exit all interfaces before disconnecting the test cable and power supply.

> To exit the Diagnostics application

- 1. On an active diagnostic screen, tap the **Back** or **ESC** functional button to exit a diagnostic session; Or
- 2. Tap the **Vehicle Swap** button in the diagnostics toolbar to return to the Vehicle Menu screen.
- 3. On the vehicle menu screen, tap the **Home** button in the top toolbar; or tap the **Back** button on the navigation bar at the bottom of the screen. Or
- 4. Tap the **Home** button on the diagnostics toolbar to exit the application directly and return to the MaxiSys Job Menu.

Now, the Diagnostics application is no longer communicating with the vehicle and it is safe to open other MaxiSys applications, or exit the MaxiSys Diagnostic System and return to the Android System's Home screen.

5 Repair Assist (内容待更新)

Repair Assist is a specific fault code analysis function, with which you can access the most comprehensive and the latest code-specific data, tests information, real repair cases and relevant fixes. It is finely assembled based on real shop repair orders and industry professionals.

Repair Assist adopts the scientific data cloud computing technology to match the specific fault code with the exact model of various vehicle brands. And the data has been verified strictly by maintenance experts.

The following are main parts of the code data contained in Repair Assist:

- 1. Technical Service Bulletin (OEM Information)
- 2. Frequency of Occurrence
- 3. Troubleshooting
- 4. Real Fixes
- 5. Relevant Repair Information
- 6. Recommended Cases

5.1 Access the System

Before starting Repair Assist, please ensure that the vehicle communication has been established properly. Connect the MaxiSys Ultra Diagnostic tablet to the test vehicle through the VCMI device. For detailed directions to establish vehicle communication with the MaxiSys tablet, see *Establish Vehicle Communication*.

Once communication has been established, select Auto Scan to scan all available system modules. The scanned modules will display on the main screen.



Figure 5-1 Sample System List Screen

For some vehicles, including Volkswagen, Audi, BMW, Ford, Land Rover, Jaguar, Chrysler, Fiat, Volvo, a topology map is available to display the relationship between vehicle systems.

Land Rover		念	\$	• 0	B		
Land Rover > Manual selection	on > Auto scan					V	006 F ∓T 12.35∀
🕰 Auto scan	Topology	List		-		🗆 12% 🗹 Sele	ct systems
🗶 Control unit	_						_
🗐 Test plan		AUS ATCH	GCM HCM		RDCM	SAEM TOCM	VIM
Hot Function		RCM BCM	GSM IPC	PEM S		SUMB TCM	
Special function		HCM DSM	FCIM HCMB	IPM8 F	PDM RGTM		
Programming/ Customization		FCHM	FOIMB HVAC	PAM	RFA		
		MM DADH	REM TVM				
		NCM NCM	SRM				Q
							۹.
		■ N	st soanned Pass GUB_MOST	CANUNS	 A resp: CAN_MS 	nse	
VIN: Info: Land Rover/Range rove sport	r	Test p	lan Repor	Quick	Pause	Enter system	ESC
^ ^	. 0	Ō	1 M	VCM4 \$	8. 68	G.	🛡 🕱 100% 🛙 3.02

Figure 5-2 Sample Topology Display Screen

To review the Auto scan procedures, see Chapter 4 Basic Diagnostic Operation (Getting Started).

- > To access the system
 - 1. Tap the List button, a list of modules is scanned or in the process of scanning.

- 2. Select a module from the displayed list.
- 3. Tap the gray arrow icon (*Figure 5-1 System list*) on the right of the entry to display a dropdown menu of code results.

5.2 Code Results Dropdown Menu

Read the DTCs with **Read codes** function. For detailed procedure, see *Read Code* in Basic Diagnostic Operation.

After DTCs have been read, the code results dropdown menu is displayed together with status and description. A gray arrow icon will display on the right under the DTC guide heading (*Figure 5-3 DTC code dropdown menu*). This icon indicates that Repair Assist – repair case is available to review.

Mercedes-Benz		2 0	8		
Mercedes-Benz > Automatic	selection > Auto	o scan > NSA-Night View Assist >	Read codes	VQ	🚯 🖽 12.45V
ECU information			Read codes		
Kina Read codes	DTC	Status	Description		DTC guide
ACT Head codes	5058	Stored&Current	No connection to the co Assist camera)		₽
5 Event Code	5059	Stored&Current	Please refer to vehicle s	ervice manual!	
🗠 Live data					
🚵 Active test					
- Control unit	1				
adaptations					
VIN:WDC2210561A123456 Info: Benz/221.056 S350 Gasoline		DTC guide	Freeze Search	Erase Read	ESC
ogaonne			Irame	codes	
★		🦻 🖸 📲	🟦 vow 🔒	e 6 -	③ ♀ 25% 2.07

Figure 5-3 Sample DTC Code Dropdown Menu

5.3 Repair Case Screen Layout

Repair Assist is divided into 6 main sections and sub-sections with multiple diagnostic procedures and repair cases. Each section contains detailed description and introduction.



Figure 5-4 Sample Repair Case Layout

- 1. Title displays the vehicle make, model and year and the detected vehicle fault.
- Technical Service Bulletin contains code-specific Recalls, TSB, and OEM campaigns.
- 3. **Frequency of Occurrence** graphically displays the frequency tendencies of different types of faults as mileage increases.
- 4. **Troubleshooting** displays detailed steps to detect and clear DTCs.
- 5. Real Fixes displays overview of real repair plan.
- Autel tool link displays link to Autel Mall for direct purchase of Autel tools and software.
- 7. Relevant Repair Information describes repair procedures in detail.
- 8. Subdivision steps shows specific operations for component maintenance.
- 9. **Relevant Cases** recommends other relevant fault-clearing cases for the same type of vehicle.

5.4 Technical Service Bulletin (OEM Information)

The Technical Service Bulletin function matches the selected fault code with relevant TSB from vehicle manufacturer to display relevant repair data directly, greatly improving vehicle diagnostics efficiency.



Figure 5-5 Sample TSB Screen

Tap the TSB icon to display OEM Information. The following screen displays a TSB on a vehicle night vision system and a complaint of image interference. The document displays symptoms, causes and remedy of issue.

Reterence Number(s):	LI54.21-P-057404 Version 1, Date of Issue: October 31, 2013
Mercedes-Benz:	212###-#A-703805 to 212###-#A-736747 with code 610
Design Group:	54.21 Control modules/modules
OMPLAINT	
There may be image inter	ference in the night view system.
CAUSE	
Diffused light screen of th	e night view camera is missing in the cover of the multifunction camera.
REMEDY	
Carry out visual inspectio	in through the windshield to determine whether cover with diffused light screen is installed.
f the diffused light screen	n is missing the rouer must be replaced
n die dinused agne screer	namaang, die cover must bereplaced.
SYMPTOMS	
e	tion/Warning and control system/Night View Assist/Nonfunctional.
Lommunication/informat	

Figure 5-6 Sample Detailed TSB Screen

5.5 Frequency of Occurrence

The Frequency of Occurrence graph displays the frequency of particular faults as vehicle mileage increases.